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Directors’ report
For the year ended 31 December 2016

“MRS Oil Nigeria Ple has great passion and commitment to Africa and its people. We are an African
Company with an eye to put Africa on the global listing of world class companies. Our trade mark is
‘excellence through partnership’.”

The Directors present their Annual Report on the state of affairs of the Company, together with the Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December, 2016.

Incorporation and Legal Status of the Company

The Company was incorporated as a privately owned Company in 1969, and was converted to a Public
Limited Liability Company quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange in 1978, as a result of the 1977
Nigerian Enterprises Promotions Decree. The Company is domiciled in Nigeria and its shares are listed
on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE).

The marketing of products in Nigeria commenced in 1913 under the Texaco brand, when they were
distributed exclusively by CFAO a French Multinational Retail Company. In 1964 Texaco Africa Limited
started direct marketing of Texaco products selling through service stations and kiosks acquired from the
said multinational retail company, on lease terms. It also entered into the aviation business.

On 12 August, 1969, Texaco Nigeria Limited was incorporated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Texaco
Africa Limited, thus inheriting the business formerly carried out in Nigeria by Texaco Africa Limited.
With the promulgation of the Nigeria Indigenization Decree in 1978, 40% of Texaco Nigeria Limited was
sold to Nigerian individuals and organizations by Texas Petroleum Company,

[n 1990, the Companies and Allied Matters Decree came into force and this necessitated the removal of
‘Limited” from the Company’s corporate name, to the prescribed ‘Public Limited Liability Company®
(PLC) with its shares quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange,

Following the creation of ChevronTexaco in 2001 from the merger between Chevron Corporation and
former Texaco Inc, Texaco Nigeria Ple became an integral part of the new corporation. As
ChevronTexaco considered the acquisition of former Union Oil Company of California (UNOCAL), the
Board of ChevronTexaco decided to eliminate ‘Texaco® from the corporate name and retain only Chevron
as the new name of the enlarged corporation.

Effective 1 September, 2006, the Company’s name changed from Texaco Nigeria Plc to Chevron Oil
Nigeria Ple following a directive from Chevron Corporation’s headquarters to all affiliate companies. This
was designed to present a clear, strong and unified presence of Chevron Carporation throughout the world.

On 20 March, 2009, there was an acquisition of Chevron Africa Holdings Limited, (a Bermudian
Company) by Corlay Global S.A. of Moffson Building, East 54" Street, Panama, Republic of Panama. By
virtue of this foreign transaction, Chevron Nigeria Holdings Limited, Bermuda changed its name to MRS
Africa Holdings Limited, Bermuda. The new management of the Company announced a change of name
of the Company from Chevron Oil Nigeria Plc to MRS Oil Nigeria Plc (“MRS™) effective 2 December,
2009, following the ratification of the name change of the Company at the 40® Annual General Meeting
of the Company on 29 September, 2009,

Currently 253,988,672 shares are held by about 24,033 Nigerian shareholders and | fareign shareholder
(MRS Africa Holdings Limited, Bermuda, a subsidiary of Corlay Global S.A.) in MRS Oil Nigeria Ple, a
company with the main business of marketing and/or manufacture of petroleum related
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products in Nigeria. With about 140 active company owned operating outlets and about 221 third party
owned operating outlets, MRS Oil Nigeria Plc is a major player in Nigeria’s petroleum products marketing
industry and a leading producer of quality lubricating oils and greases.

Principal Activities:
The Company remains principally engaged in the business of marketing and distribution of refined
petroleum products, blending of lubricants and manufacturing of greases.

Company Results:
The summary of the results of the Company as included in the Financial Statements are as follows:

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 2015
N'000 M'000
Revenue 109,635,054 87099216
Profit Before Tax 2,287,347 1,460,843
Taxation (847.442) (525,218)
Profit for the Year 1.465,905 035,625
Proposed Dividend for the Year 439,772 279,388
Earnings Per 50K Share (Naira) 897 3.68
Declared Dividend per 50K Share (Kobo) 110 88
Net Assets per 50K Share 8,726 8,258
Dividend:

The Board proposes to pay ¥1.73 kobo per share, as final dividend (2015:3%1.10 kobo per share). The
proposed dividend which amounts to approximately N439.77 million will, if approved at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, be paid on 25 July 2017 to the shareholders on the register of the
Company at the close of business on 30 June 2017 and is subject to appropriate withholding tax.

Board Changes:

Mr. Andrew Oghenovo Gbodume was appointed Managing Director (Ag.) of the Company on January 1,
2016, following the resignation of Dr. Paul Bissohong as Managing Director on Januaryl, 2016, to take
on another assignment within the MRS Group.

Election/Re-election of Directors:
In accordance with Articles 90/91 of the Company’s Article of Association, Alhaji Sayyu Dantata, Mr.
Patrice Alberti and Ms. Amina Maina retire by rotation and being cligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Going Concern:
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to inform them, that the Company will not remain a

going concern in the next twelve months.
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The Directors in office during the year are listed below and except where stated, served on the board in

2016:
NAME NATIONALITY | DESIGNATION APPOINTMENT/
RESIGNATIONS (A/R)
Alhaji S. I. Dantata Chairman March 20, 2009 (A)

Mr. A. O. Gbodume*

Managing Director (Ag.)

May 12, 2011 (A)

Dr. P. Bissohong**

Cameroonian

Non-Executive Director

December 3, 2012 (A)

Mr. P. Alberti

French

Non-Executive Director

March 20. 2009 (A)

Dr. S. Kewa

Non-Executive Director

March 7, 2007 (A)

Ms. A. Maina

Non-Executive Director

November 6, 2013 (A)

Non-Executive Director

March 20, 2009 (A)

Alhaji D, M. Barau**#

*Mr. A. O. Gbodume was appointed Managing Director (Ag.) effective, 1* of January 2016.
**Dr. Paul Bissohong ceased to be the Managing Director effective, 1* of January 2016.
#*##Mr. Lawal Mangal is the Alternate of Alhaji Dahiru Mangal Barau effective, 10" of May, 2012,

Directors’ Interest in the Issued Share Capital of the Company:

The direct and indirect interests of Directors in the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and/or as notified by the Directors for the purposes of Sections 275
of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of 2004 and the listing requirements of the Nigerian Stock
Exchange are as follows:

I. Samaila M.Kewa and Amina Maina directly own 1,989 and 26,503 shares in the Company
respectively. (2015: 1,989; 26,503)

2. Sayyu Dantata is a shareholder in MRS Holdings Limited incorporated in Nigeria, which owns
50% of the shares in Corlay Global SA incorporated in Panama. Corlay Global SA owns 100% of
the shares in MRS Africa Holdings Limited incorporated in Bermuda, which owns 60% of the
shares in MRS Qil Nigeria Plc.

Directors’ Interest in Contract:
In accordance with Section 277 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2004, none of the Directors have
notified the Company of any direct or indirect interest in any contract or proposed contract with the

Company.

Major Shareholders:
According to the Register of Members as at 31 December 2016, the following shareholders of the

Company hold more than 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

Name Units Percentage %
MRS Africa Holdings Limited 152,393,190 60%
First Pen Cust/Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria-

MAI 26,599,865 10.47%
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Analysis of Shareholding:
According to the Register of Members at 31 December 2016, the spread of shareholding in the Company

is presented below;

Number of holding No of Number of Percentage of
Local shareholders: Sharcholders shares held sharcholding |
1 300 9.373 2,057,011 0.80%
501 1,000 3.726 2,809,112 1.11%
1,001 5.000 8.550 19,780,768 7.79%
5,001 50,000 2,239 26,104,020 10.28%
50,001 100,000 80 5.668.350 2.23%
100,001 500,000 36 11,119,608 4.38%
500,001 1,000,000 6 4,294,587 1.69%
1,000,001 50,000,000 3 29,762,026 11.72%
Total 240.033 101,595,482 40%
Foreign
Sharecholders
Over 50,000,001 253,988,672 ; 152,393,190 60%
TOTAL 24,034 | 253,988,672 100%

Acquisition of Its Own Shares:

The Company did not acquire its shares during the year,

ISO Certification:

The Company is committed to the continued regulation of its quality management system by the
International Standards Organisation 1S0:9001 2008. In the year under review, 1SO conducted its annual
audit and was satisfied that the Company consistently maintains high compliance levels.

The Managing Director/CEO has the responsibility of ensuring that the Company’s activities are
conducted in the safest and most efficient manner and to deliver value to its stakeholders,

Employment Policy:

The Company is committed to selecting and employing the best qualified individuals for positions,
consistent with the Company’s long term best interest. The determining factors in recruiting, hiring,
selecting and placing employees are the overall requirements of the job.

The objective of the policy is to provide a level of remuneration that is sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate high quality employees to run the Company successfully and to ensure that there is an alignment
between the Company s business plan and shareholder objectives.
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Employment of the Physically Challenged:

The Company maintains a fair policy in considering job applications of physically challenged persons
having regard to their abilities and aptitude. The Company did not employ any physically challenged
person during the year.

Diversity:

The Company provides a working environment that promotes diversity within its workforce and enables
employees to participate and contribute to the growth of the Company. The policy prohibits any form of
discrimination on the basis of disability, race, religion, colour, national or ethnic origin, age, sex, political
preference, membership or non-membership of any lawful organization or any other basis in the
recruitment, training and career development of employees,

Employees Health, Safety and Environment;

The Company is committed to identifying and maintaining high standards of safety, health and
environmental risk management in the work place for its employees and for suppliers, customers and the
public in line with best global HSE standards. In the year under review, consistent Health, Safety and
Environment (HSE) standards continued to guide the Company’s operations and activities and define
appropriate control measures, to prevent workplace accidents, illness, injuries and the protection of
environmental pollution.

The main occupational safety and health hazards associated with the Company’s businesses are safety and
injury hazards, fire and explosion, slips, trips and falls, confined space entry, contact injury hazards, health
and illness hazards and environmental issues,

In order to build and sustain a zero incidence culture across the workplace and ensure safety is always at
the forefront for every stakeholder, a number of HSE related trainings were organized by the Company:

I. Annual Basic Fire Prevention and Fighting Skills for the Fire Marshals in all of the Company’s
locations.

2. Truck Inspection and Ullaging Techniques.

Safe Loading and Unloading Procedures plus Incident Prevention Practical Trainings for MRS

retail outlets representatives, Managers and Dealers.

4. Quarterly Service Stations Safety Program for station managers and customer service attendants.

General Fire Safety and Safe Handling of Chemicals.

Annual Safe Works Practice (SWP) for employees and coniractors.

Quarterly Road Transportation Safety Program (RTS) for operations and the Company’s Haulers

across the country.

(¥4

i

Furthermore, the outcome of all the periodic statutory inspections and assessments of the facilities and
operations were satisfactory.

In line with Management’s directive and goals for the year under review, the Health Safety and
Environment department remains committed to a safe work environment that is incident free. In MRS, an
incident prone environment is unacceptable.

Employees Health and Wellbeing:

In order, to maintain the state of good health and wellbeing of its employees in the year under review, the
Company continued to provide prompt and personalized quality health and medicare services for
employees and their families through its preferred Health Management Organizations (HMOs) at different
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locations nationwide as well as annual medical checks for all employees, The operation of in-house clinics
at Apapa Lube Plant/Fuel terminal and the Head Office were also sustained.

The Company is committed to the continuous evaluation of its standards and the Health Safety and
Environment department seeks to annually improve on its performance through industry best practices
across the Company.

Employees Involvement, Training and Development:

Various employees took part in the training and development programs in the year under review. Foreign
Trainings, International Conferences and the IATA Aviation Fuel Forum was undertaken to enable
employees learn current international standards and operational excellence,

Several in-house trainings focusing on Technical Skills Training were organized by the Human Resources
department for various departments, to improve job competence.

A Management Development Programme (MDP) for all Heads of Departments and Line Managers was
developed and implemented with the deployment of a Personality and 360 Degrees Leadership
Assessments. An Executive Business Communication Programme was also organized for all Heads of
Departments and Line Managers to improve their business communication skills.

Other trainings attended within the year under review include Soft Skills Training, Technical Trainings
and Conferences which impacted positively on employees’ job performance. As part of our corporate
values to continually train our employees to become the best professionals, 30 professional membership
subscriptions were sustained in the vear under review.

Contributions and Charitable Donations:
During the year, the Company made the following donations/contributions in fulfillment of its Corporate

Social Responsibility.

SPONSORHIF/DONATION TO ORPHANAGE HOMES, CHARITY ORGANIZATIONS AND
SCHOOLS — YEAR 2016

Amount N
1 Ovie Brume Foundation To Support Initiative 168,500.00
Sponsoring a Child - Maria Enejo
2 Society for Orphans Welfare, Ikoyi, Lagos To Support Initiative 100,000.00
3 Home for the Blind, Surulere, Lagos To Support Initiative 100,000.00
4 Pacelli School for the Blind & partially sighted Children, | To Support Initiative 100,000.00
Surulere, Lagos
5 The HIV/AIDS Initiative To Support Initiative 300,000.00
Total 768,500.00

Donations made in 2016 amounted to 3768,500.00 (2015: M5.373,500).

In accordance with Section 38(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the Company did not make
any donations or give any political party, political association or provide funds for any political purpose
in the course of the year under review.
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The HIV/AIDS Initiative:

In a Strategic Public-Private Sector Alliance, MRS Oil Nigeria PLC supported the Red Ribbon Anti Stigma
and Anti-Discrimination Campaign to unite in the fight against the deadly HIV Virus. As part of the High
Impact Partnership for Red-Ribbon Grassroots Outreach to commemorate the Worlds AIDS Day, 2016,
the Company contributed towards the 2016 Advocacy Campaign which featured a combination of
activities, including voluntary counselling and testing, public education and awareness sessions in 10
states, (Lagos, Edo, Oyo, Anambra, Abuja, Gombe, Kano, Cross-River, Akwa-Ibom and Nasarawa) of the
Federation.

In accordance with Section 38(2). of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the Company did not make
any donation or give any gift to any political party, political association or provide funds for any political
purpose in the course of the year under review,

Information Technology Upgrades:
The Company is committed to the provision of regular information technology infrastructure upgrade for
its head office and field locations. Information Technology achievements in the year under review include:

I. Replacement of old computer desktops and laptops with newer models for improved work efficiency.

2. Purchase of new Cisco 2900 Router and Core Catalyst Switch 3850 for improved network
performance and security.

3. Upgrade of Clients’ Operating Systems from Windows 7/8 to Windows 10 for improved user
experience and productivity.

4. Upgrade of Servers Operating System for greater network efficiency and reliability.

5. Training of end users on Microsoft Office365 Enterprise Collaborative tools — SharePoint, Yammer,
OneDrive etc.

6. SAP (Systemanalyse und Programmentwicklung: Systems, Applications & Products in Data
Processing) improvement such as Purchase Requisition Workflow Notification.

7. Graphical Display Network Monitoring Tool (Dude).

8. [Installation of Bandwidth Manager on the network.

Internal Audit Function and Internal Controls:

The internal Audit Head of the Company is a competent professional with high integrity. He is a chartered
accountant who manages inherent risks in the day to day business operations of the Company and provides
oversight functions on the effectiveness and appropriateness of the Company’s internal systems and
processes.

The Internal Audit Team submits its report to the Audit Committee of the Company. The internal controls
and processes are reviewed regularly and assessments are carried out to ascertain the effectiveness and
appropriateness of the internal controls.
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Appointments and Promotions:

The Company is committed to attracting, recruiting and retaining skilled and experienced personnel into
the organization for future growth and continuity of its operations. The Company will continue to identify
and reward positive contributions by its employees who excel in their various functional areas. 30
employees were promoted in the year under review.

Staff Strength:
As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s staff strength was 132 (2015: 82). This number excludes

employees on secondment from MRS Holdings Limited.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Information relating to changes in the Company’s property, plant and equipment is given in Note 12 to the
Financial Statements. In the Directors opinion, the market value of the Company’s properties is not less
than the value shown in the Financial Statements during the year.

Auditors:

Messrs. KPMG Professional Services, having satisfied the relevant corporate governance rules on their
tenure in office have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors to the Company. In
accordance with Section 357 (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria therefore, the
Auditors will be re-appointed at the next annual general meeting of the Company without any resolution

being passed.

By the Order of the Board

O Lo

Company Secretary~
FRC NO: 2013/NBA/0000000231 |
2,- 2. March, 2017
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The Board considers the maintenance of high standards of corporate governance, central to achieving the
Company’s objective of maximizing shareholders value. The Board has a schedule of matters reserved
specifically for its decision and the Directors have access to learning appropriate professional skills and
knowledge development.

Ethical Standards:
In line with the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2004, the Securities and Exchange Commission’s

Code of Corporate Governance, the Nigerian Stock Exchange Rules and Regulations and other statutory
regulations, the Directors continue to act with utmost integrity and high ethical standards and are aware of
this primary responsibility in their business dealings with the Company.

Board Composition:

The Company’s Board currently comprises of a Non-Executive Chairman, Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors. The Executive Directors have extensive knowledge of the oil and gas industry, while
the Non-Executive Directors bring in their broad knowledge of business, financial. commercial and

technical experience to the Board.

Annually, the Board routinely reviews the board structure to ensure that there is a satisfactory balance of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors in the Company. However, this balance may be reviewed on an
ongoing basis, bearing in mind the size of the Company and its ownership structure.

In the year under review, there were 7 Directors on the Board of the Company; each Director bringing
their wealth of experience to bear on deliberations at Board Meetings.

Separation of Powers:

There is a separation of powers between the Chairman of the Company and the Managing Director/CEQ
in line with best practice and Corporate Governance standards. The Chairman and the Managing Director
of the Company have separate and distinct roles.

The Company Secretariat:

The Company Secretary is the custodian of the Company’s history and is responsible for ensuring that
Board Members are kept abreast of Statutory and Corporate Governance policies. The Company Secretary
also provides support, guidance and advice to the Directors as required.

The secretariat is the liaison office between the Shareholders and the Directors and it is a warehouse of
up-to-date statutory records, statutory registers and other records.

Meetings:
The register of attendance at board and committee meetings, is available for inspection during normal
business hours at the registered office of the Company and at each Annual General Meeting of the

Company.
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The Board meets at least 4 times a year for regular scheduled meetings to review the Company’s operations
and trading performance, to set and monitor strategy as well as consider new business options. The Board
also meets for unscheduled meetings, if there are specific matters that require its attention.

Attendance at Board Meetings:
The attendance of Directors at board meetings in the year under review is noted below;

MRS Oil Nigeria Plc — 2016 Board Meetings

DIRECTORS Designation Feb 25, |Mar23, |Apr26, |July27, |Augd, |Oct25,
16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16

Alhaji Sayvu 1. Dantata Chairman X X X X

Mr. Andrew O. Managing X X X X X X

Gbodume Director (Ag.)

Dr. Paul Bissohong Member X X X X X

Mr. Patrice Alberti Member X X X X X

Dr. Samaila M. Kewa Member X X X X X X

Mr. Lawal Mangal Member

Ms. Amina Maina Member X X X X X X

Board Performance Appraisal:

The Board took a formal evaluation of its performance in the year under review. A follow up process exists
for all matters of concern or potential improvement which may arise, when an evaluation process is carried
out. The Board completed an evaluation in March 23, 2017 and the conclusion of the Report was that there

were no significant areas of concern.

Sub Committees of the Board:

The Board has established Committees, each with approved written Terms of Reference. Currently, there
are 4 sub-committees of the Board and the Chairman is not on any of the Committees. The Sub-committees
are established to assist the Board to effectively and efficiently perform guidance and oversight functions,
amongst others,

The Terms of Reference for all the Committees are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company.

The current composition of the Board Sub-committees and attendance at meetings in the year under review
are as follows: -

1. The Audit Committee

The Audit Designation Feb 24, | Mar22, | Apr22, | July26, | Qct20,
Committee Members ‘16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16
Engr. Tunji [jaiva Chairman X X X X X
Baale Isiaka Saliu Member X X X X X
Chief Vincent Barrah Member X X X X X

Dr. Samaila M. Kewa Member X X X X X

Ms. Amina Maina Member X X X X

Mr, Patrice Alberti X X
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The Audit Committee is chaired by a shareholder representative. On the invitation of the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, representatives of Management and the External Auditors are invited to attend meetings.
The Audit Committee is responsible for the review of the Quarterly and Annual Financial Reports of the
Company before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations on the
appointment of the External Auditors and reviews the nature and scope of their work as well as gives
recommendations on the Company’s accounting procedures and internal controls.

In the year under review, the Audit Committee met 5 times.

2. Board Nominations and Corporate Governance Committee

Board Nominations and Corporate | Designation Apr 26, | Jul 26, | Oct 25,
Governance ‘16 ‘16 167
Committee Members

Mr. Patrice Alberti Chairman X X

Dr. Paul Bissohong Member X X

Mr. Andrew O. Gbodume Member X X X

Mr. Lawal D. Mangal Member

Dr. Samalia M. Kewa Member X X X

Ms. Amina Maina Member X X X

The Board Nominations and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for proposing candidates
for appointment to the Board, bearing in mind the balance and structure of the Board. The Committee also
considers corporate governance issues, ensures strict compliance with corporate governance and makes
recommendation to the Board (on issues regarding but not limited to) the membership of the Audit, the
Risk, Strategic & Finance Planning and the Human Resources Committee in consultation with the
Chairman of each Committee,

In the year under review, the Board Nominations and Corporate Governance Committee met 3 times.

3. The Risk, Strategic and Finance Planning Committee:

Risk, Strategic Planning Designation Mar 22, | Oct 25,
and Finance ‘16 167
Committee Members

Ms. Amina Maina Chairman X X
Dr. Paul Bissohong Member X X
Mr. Andrew O. Ghodume Member X X
Dr. Samalia M. Kewa Member X X
Mr, Lawal D. Mangal Member

Mr. Patrice Alberti Member X X

The Risk, Strategic and Finance Planning Committee, is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
in performing its guidance and oversight functions effectively and efficiently and is specifically charged
with managing the Organization’s exposure to financial and other risk. This Committee is also responsible
for defining the Company’s strategic objectives, determining its financial and operational priorities,
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making recommendations regarding the Company’s dividend policy and evaluating the long term
productivity of the Company’s operations.

In the year under review, the Risk, Strategic and Finance Planning Committee met 2 times.

3. Human Resources Committee:

Human Resources Designation Feb24, | Mar22, | Apr26, | July26,
Committee Members ‘16 ‘16 ‘16 ‘16

Dr. Samalia M. Kewa Chairman X X X X
Dr. Paul Bissohong Member X X

Mr. Andrew O. Gbhodume Member X X X X
Ms. Amina Maina Member X X X X
Mr. Patrice Alberti Member X X X

The Human Resources Committee is responsible for reviewing the contract terms, remuneration and other
benefits of the Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Company. The Committee also reviews
the Reports of external consultants for services rendered, which assist the Committee in their duties.

The Chairman and other Directors may be invited to attend meetings of the Committee, but do not take
part in any decision making directly affecting their own remuneration. The Committee undertakes an
external and independent review of remuneration levels on a periodic basis, to ensure that employment
policies are strictly adhered to.

In the year under review, the Human Resources Committee met 4 times.

Shareholders Rights:
The Board is committed to the continuous engagement of its shareholders and ensures that shareholders’

rights are well protected. The Board further ensures effective communication to its shareholders regarding
notice of meetings and necessary statutory information,

E-Dividend:

Our records show that several dividends and share certificates remain unclaimed despite publications in
the Newspaper to our shareholders and the circulation of the E-dividend forms. A ffected shareholders are
urged to kindly update their records to enable the Registrars complete the E-dividend process. The E-
dividend form is attached for your necessary and urgent attention.

Statement of Compliance:

The Company has in place, a Securities Trading Policy, which helps to guide its Directors, Executive
Management, Officers and Employees on insider trading as well as the trading of the Company’s shares.
The Company continues to carry out its business operations on procedures consistent with excellence
through partnership and transparency.

MRS Oil Nigeria Ple has established a Complaints Management Policy which stipulates guidelines, on
responses to feedback from investors, clients and other stakeholders, The Policy provides an impartial, fair
and objective process of handling stakeholders’ complaints as well as an established monitoring and
implementation procedure.
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The Company effectively and efficiently responds to feedbacks in a bid to improve and exceed customer
expectations, client experience, as well as to deliver excellent service to its stakeholders.

Based on the recommendations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the Nigerian Stock
Exchange Listing Rules (as Amended), as well as other international best practices, the Company has
complied with corporate governance and best practices. MRS Oil Nigeria Plc is committed to the continued
sustenance of the principles of sound corporate governance.

Whistle Blowing:

The Company is committed to complying with all laws in Nigeria that are relevant to its operations. In line
with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Code of Corporate Governance, a
whistle blowing policy is in place, for the reporting of serious, actual and suspected concerns of integrity
and unethical behaviour. An extract of this policy can be found on the Company’s website.

By the Order of the Board

=2 A
O-MTfaf..
0. M..lafojo} RS %
Company Secretary

FRC NO: 2013/NBA/00000002311
2.3 March, 2017
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation to the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016

The directors accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Repoting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004
and Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

The directors further accept responsibility for maintaining adequate accounting records as required by
the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
have no reason to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead.

SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Signature Sig b
Mr. Andrew Gbodume (Managing Director, Ag.) Mr. Paul Bissohong (Director)
Name Name
FRC/2012/1C AN/O0000000534 FRC/2013/10D/0000000384 1
FRC FRE
22 March 2917 23 March 2917
Date Date
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Report of the audit committee
For the year ended 31 December 2016

TO THE MEMBERS OF MRS OIL NIGERIA PLC

In accordance with Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2004, we the Members of the
Audit Committee of MRS Oil Nigeria Ple, have reviewed the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December, 2016 and based on the documents and information available
to us, report as follows:

(a) We ascertained that the accounting and reporting policies of the Company are in accordance with
legal requirements and agreed ethical practices;

(b) We have reviewed the scope and planning of the audit requirements;
(©) We have reviewed the findings on management matters in conjunction with the external auditor

and departmental responses thereon;

(d) We have kept under review the effectiveness of the Company’s system of accounting and internal
control.

Members of the Audit Committee in 2016.

1. Alhaji T. ljaiva - Chairman
2. Baale 1. Saliu - Member
3. Chief V. Barrah - Member
4, Dr. .M. Kewa - Member
5, Mr. P. Alberti - Member
6. Ms. A. Maina - Member

TUNJI [JAIYA
Chairman, Audit Committee
FRC NO: 2014/COREN/00000007638
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KPMG Tower 234 (1) 271 8599
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Victoria Island
PMB 40014, Falomo
lLagos

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of MRS Qil Nigeria Plc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial staterments of MRS Qil Nigeria Plc (the Company), which comprise the

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out

on pages 22 to 63.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows far the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and in the
manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria, 2004 and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act, 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Nigeria and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters »
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

KPMG Prafassional Sarvicas, a Partnarshia establiahod undar Partnars:

e el ot Abiala . Bada Adebisi O, Lamikants  Adokunle A, Elebute Adatola P Adayemi
Adawale K. Ajayi Alibola O. Olomala Ayodals A, Soyinka Aycdele H, Othihiwa
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Olwwafemi 0. Awotoye Oluwatoyin A, Geagl Oguntayo I. Ogungoenra  Victor U, Onyankpa

Associate Partnars,
Nnaka C. Eluma Ternitopa A. Onitiri
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Revenue recognition

Refer to Note 3(j) (Accounting policy) and Note 5 (Revenue) to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed

The high volume of sales transactions, coupled
with the pricing of a significant number of the
Company's products, renders the accuracy of
revenue recognition an area of significance for the
Company.

In addition, the constant fluctuation of the
Nigerian Naira against other currencies had a
significant impact on the Company's product
pricing during the year.

We tested key controls over price changes to
ascertain that changes in prices of the respective
products during the year were updated
appropriately.

In addition to testing detailed sales transactions
on a sample basis, we performed product
volume reconciliations across the different
product types to ascertain accuracy of sales
volumes.

We evaluated journal entries and credit notes
recorded in the respective revenue accounts by
checking that they represented valid adjustments
to revenue recognized and were approved by the
appropriate authorities within the Company.

Recoverability of trade and other receivables

Refer to Note 3(g) (Accounting policy) and Note 25(a) (Credit risk) to the financial statements

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed

The aviation sector has been in a distressed state
leading to a high rate of default within the sector.
The Company has significant exposure to this
sector with a specific customer for which there has
been significant delays in receiving the amounts
due. There are significant estimations involved in
determining the recoverable cash flows and the
resultant impairment allowance on the amounts
receivable from this customer.

In addition, the Company has recognized as
receivables, exchange differences between the rate
used by the Company's relevant Regulator in
pricing Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) and the actual
foreign exchange rates incurred. Although in the
past, the Company billed and collected the
exchange difference from the Regulator, the
collection pattern of such receivables have been
slow. Therefore, judgement is required in
determining the recoverability of these amounts.

We evaluated the operating effectiveness of key
controls with respect to approval of credit limits
and monthly reviews of customer balances at
credit control meetings. The key controls tested
covered processes such as monitoring the
performance of receivables, including the timely
identification of impairment triggers.

We also considered and challenged the
reasonability of the assumptions used in
estimating the recoverable cash flows from long
overdue receivables. These assumptions
included the evaluation of the likely recoverable
amounts, discount factors and the timing of the
expected cash flows.

In addition, we challenged the directors’
impairment assessment as well as the basis and
assumptions adopted in determining the
recoverability of the amounts due from the
Regulator, by evaluating historical patterns of
recoverability with reference to our knowledge of
the industry.
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

Directors’ report, Statement of directors’ responsibilities, Corporate governance report, Report of the
Audit Committee, Corporate information & Leadership team, Results at a glance, Other national
disclosures and Certification pursuant to Section 60 (2) of Investment and Securities Act no 29 of
2007 (but does not include the financial statements and our audit report thereon), which we obtained
prior to the date of this auditors’ report, and the Corporate profile, Notice of Annual General Mesting,
Board of Directors pictures, Chairman's Statement, Brief profile of Board of Directors, Shareholders
information, Share price movement, List of lubricant distributors, Corporate directory, E-dividend form
and proxy card which is expected to be made available to us after that date ("the other reports”).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other reports, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap
C.20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 Nigeria and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria
Act, 2011, and for such internal control as the directors determine is nacessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial staterments.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal cantrol.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial staterments, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and'Regulatory Requirements
Compliance with the requirements of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C.20,

Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our
examination of those books and the Company's statement of financial position and statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.

Signed: Mﬂﬁ

Oluwafemi O. Awotoye, FCA

FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001182

For: KPMG Professional Services
Chartered Accountants

23 March 2017

Lagos, Nigeria




Statement of financial position
as at 31 December

MRS Qil Nigeria Ple
Annual Report
31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
M'000 =000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 18.402.454 19,053,705
Intangible assets 13 29,920 1,144
Prepayments 30 578,073 354,303
Trade and other receivables 13 347.922 1,211
Total non-current assets 19,358,369 19.410,363
Inventories 17 7.004,173 6.260.483
Loans and receivables 14 445,193 606,985
T'rade and other receivables 15 43.244.878 20,519,974
Witholding tax receivables 16 68,288 32,348
Prepayments i0 333,130 289.191
Cash and cash equivalents 18 10,910,784 19,774,397
Total current assets 62.006.446 47,483,378
Total assets 81,364,815 66,893,741
Equity
Share capital 19 126,994 126,994
Retained earnings 22.036.847 20,850,330
Total equity 22,163,841 20,977,324
Liabilities
Employee benefit obligations 20 13.891 12,618
Deferred tax liabilities 11(d) 5,116,904 5.312,099
Total non-current liabilities 5,130,795 5.324.717
Security deposits 21 1.766.967 1,573,485
Dividend payable 22(a) 411,318 399,889
Trade and other payables 23 32,156,838 21.226.030
Bank overdraft and short term borrowings 24 18,526,536 16,400,466
Tax payable 11(c) 1.208.500 991,830
Total current liabilities 54,070,179 40.591.700
Total liabilities 59,200,974 45,916,417
81,364,815 66,893,741

Total equity and liabilities

Z )
= n\t _b_-g.;_L)_ZOIT and signed on its behall by:

Approved by the Board ol Directors ops

FRC/2012/ICAN/Q0000000534

) Dr. Paul Bissohong (Director)
FRC/2013/10D/0000000384 1

f"'r---- FRC/2013/ICAN/00000004639

T = —

The notes on pages 26 o 63 are an integral part of these linancial statements.

—)-Mr. Martin Orogun (Chief Financial Officer)

JMr. Andrew Gbodume (Managing Director, Ag.)



Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Jor the year ended 31 December

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Net finance costs
Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Naira)

MRS Qil Nigeria Pl
Annual Report
31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
=000 000
5 109,635,054 87099216
7(b) (100.,879,939) (80,676,760)
8,755,115 6,422 456
6 1,287,470 1,445,200
7(h) (1,303,993) (1,150,744)
7(b) (5,449,062) (5,106,400)
3,289,530 1,610,521
8 633,588 1,730,525
8 (1,635,771) (1,880,203)
8 (1,002,183) (149.678)
9 2.287.347 1,460,843
I1(a) (821,442) (525,218)
1,465,905 935,625
1,465,905 035,625

10(a) 5.77 3.68

The notes on pages 26 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements,

]
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Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December

; Retained ;
] 1
Notes Share capita i Total equity
000 2000 2000
Balance as at 1 January 2015 126,994 20,091,127 20.218,121
Total comprehensive income:
Profit for the year - 935,625 035,625
Other comprehensive income - 5 -
Total comprehensive income for the period - 935,625 935,625
Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and Distributions
Dividends declared 22(a) (223.510) (223,510)
Unclaimed dividend written back 22(a) - 47 088 47,088
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (176,422) (176,422)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 126,994 20,850,330 20,977,324
Retained
Notes Share capital earnings  Total equity
000 N'000 2000

Balance as at 1 January 2016 126,994 20,850,330 20,977,324
Total comprehensive income:
Profit for the year - 1,465,905 1,465,905
Total comprehensive income z 1,465,905 1,465,905
Transactions with owners of the Company
Contributions and Distributions
Dividends declared 22(a) = (279,388) (279,388)
Total transactions with owners of the Company - (279,388) (279,388)
Balance as at 31 December 2016 126,994 22,036,847 22,163,841

"

Included in retained earnings is 314.40 billion (2015: ¥14.40 billion) which represents revaluation surplus on
Property, plant and equipment transferred at IFRS transition date. The Company has opted not to distribute this

amount.

The notes on pages 26 to 63 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cagh flows
Sor the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit after tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation ol intangible assets

Finance income

Finance costs

Cinin on sale of property, plant and equipment

Write off of property, plant and equipment
Provision/{ Write-back) for long-term service award
Impairment loss on trade receivables and Truck lease
Impairment loss on employee and other receivables
Net ingrease in impairment loss on inventory

Tax expense

Changes in:

- Inventories

- Trade, other receivables and prepayinents

- Security deposits

= Trade and other payables

Cash (used)/ generated from operating activitics

Income taxes paid
Withholding tax credit notes utilised
Long=term service award paid

Net cash (used)/ generated from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities:

Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assels

Amounts paid on behall of transporters

Principal repayment received on amounts advanced 1o
ll'.l-l.HEpﬂl'll.:l’S

[nterest received

Net cash (used)/ generated from investing activitics

Cash flows from financing activities:
Additional short term borrowings
Short term borrowing repayment
Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash generated in financing activitics
Met change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at [ Janvary

Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

MRS Oil Nigerin Ple
Annal Report
31 December 2016

Notes 2016 2015
1,465,905 935,625

12(a) 1,498 434 1,535,932
13 13,819 36,222
8 (633,588) (1,730,525)
1.031.562 547,038

O(a) (44,274) -
12 54,594 -
20 2,824 (249)
7 219,499 88,816

7 9,504 3,365
17 31.235 (29.473)
1 1{a) 821,442 525218
4,470,956 1,951,969
(774,925) (2.408.261)

(13.608,530) 72,198

193,482 71,359

10.930.808 31,001,811

1,211,791 3,589,076
11{c) (701,883) (939,113)
1l(c) (98,083) (21.869)
20 (1.551) (3,440)
410273 2,624,654

115,929 -
12(n) (973,432) (397.253)
13 (42,395) »
14 (54.448) (72,585
14 154,660 374,715
8 633,388 1,730,525
(166,298) 1,635,402

20,053,383 21,934,813
(28,099 488) (15,512,831)
22(h) (267.959) (204,528)
(430,837) (417.758)

(8.744.901) 5,799,698

(8,300,927) 10,059,754

19,774,397 9,683,802

(362,686) 30,841

18 10,510,754 19,774,397

The notes on pages 26 Lo 63 are an integral part of these linancial statements.
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Index to Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to the financial statements

I. Reporting entity »
The Company was incorporated as Texaco Nigeria Limited (a privately owned Company) on 12 August
1969 and was converted to a Public Limited Liability company quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange in
1978, as a result of the 1977 Nigerian Enterprises Promotions Decree. The Company is domiciled in
Nigeria and its shares are listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE). The Company’s name was
changed to Texaco Nigeria Plc. in 1990 and again on 1 September 2006 to Chevron Qil Nigeria Ple.
On 20 March, 2009 there was an acquisition of Chevron Africa Holdings Limited., (a Bermudian
Company) by Corlay Globul SA of Moffson Building, East 54th Street, Panama, Republic of Panama. By
virtue of this forcign transaction, Chevron Nigeria Holdings Limited, Bermuda changed its name to MRS
Africa Holdings Limited, Bermuda.
The new management of the Company announced a change of name of the Company from Chevron Oil
Nigeria Plc to MRS Oil Nigeria Plc (*MRS”) effective 2 December, 2009 following the ratification of the
name change of the Company at the 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company on 29 September,
2009,

The Company is domiciled in Nigeria and has its registered officc address at:

8. Macarthy Street
Onikan

Lagos

Nigeria

The Company is principally engaged in the business of marketing and distribution of refined petroleum
products, blending of lubricants and manufacturing of greases.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and in the manner
required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria and the Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria Act, 2011.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 23 March
2017. Details of the Company's significant accounting policies are included in Note 3.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for recognition of the

following items. which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporling date,

S/ [Items Measurement bases
1|Property, plant and equipment Refer to Note 3 (c)
2|Inventories Refer 1o Note 3 (f)
3|Other long-term employee benefits Refer to Note 3 (h)
4|Loans and borrowings Refer to Note 3 (b)

(¢) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements arc presented in Nigerian Naira, which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial informatior presented in Naira have been rounded to the nearest thousand unless stated

otherwise.
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Notes to the financial statements
(d) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of annual {inancial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management to make

judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company's accounting policies

and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 December 2016 is included in the following notes:

Note 12(b) - Impairment test- recoverable amounts are higher than carrying amounts,

Note 13(b) - Recoverability of foreign exchange differential and interest on PSF receivables.

Note 20(d) - Measurement of employee benelits obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

Note 25(a) - Recoverability of trade and other receivables.

Note 29(a) - Recognition of contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an
outflow of economic resources,

Measurement of fair values
Some of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement ol fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The
Executive director (Finance & Administration) has overall responsibility lor oversecing all significant fair
value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports dircetly to the Board of Directors.

The Executive director (Finance & Administration) regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and
valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used 1o
measure fair values, then the Executive director (Finance & Administration) assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of
IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Board of Rirectors.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Company uses market obscrvable data as far as
possible, Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows.

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or  indircetly (i.c. derived from prices).

«Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels
of the lair value hierarchy. then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level
of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is signilicant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

3

(a)

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies sel out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated and recorded in Nigerian Naira at the actual
exchange rates as ol the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in loreign
currencices at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are retranslated to the functional currency al the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined.

Forcign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

(b) Financial instruments

The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into loans and receivables.
The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other [inancial liabilitics category.

- Non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilitics - recognition and derecognition

The Company initially recognises loans and receivables on the date when they are originated, Financial
liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or it neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred
asset. Any interest in such derecognised lnancial assels that is created or retained by the Company is
recognised as a separale asset or liability. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire.

Finanecial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nel amount presented in the stalement of

financial position when. and only when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
cither 1o settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the lability simultancously.

i Non-derivative finaneial assets - measurement

The Company initially recognizes loans and reccivables at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, Subsequent to initial recognition. they are measured at amortised cost using the eflective
interest method,

The Company has only loans and receivables, trade and other receivables. cash and cash equivalents as
non-derivative financial assets.

Locans and recefvables

Loans and receivables are (inancial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not guoted in an
active market.

Short term receivables that do not attract interest are measured at original invoice amount where the effect
of discounting is not material,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprisc cash on hand. cash balances with banks and call deposils with original
maturitics of threc months or less. Short-term borrowings and bank overdralts that arc repavable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash Mows,
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iii Non-derivative financial liabilities - measurement
Non-derivative financial liabilities ar¢ initially recognized at fair value less any dircctly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The Company has (he following non-derivative financial liabilities: loans and
borrowings. trade and other payables,
Short term payables that do not atiract interest are measured at original invoice amount where the effect of
discounting is not material,

(c) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

i Recognition and measurement
ltems of property. plant and equipment are measured al cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost ol certain items of PPE at 1 January 2011, the Company's date of
transition to IFRS, was determined with reference to their Fair value at that date.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable 1o the acquisition of the asset, Property, plant and
cquipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. The cost of self-constructed assets
includes the cost of materials and direct labour. any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for their intended use including, where applicable, the costs of dismantling and
removing the ilems and restoring the site on which they are located and borrowing costs on qualilying

assels,
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part ol the
equipment.

IT significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. and are recognized net
within other income in profit or loss.

ii Subsequent expenditure
The cost of replacing a part of an item ol property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property. plant and equipment are recognized in
profit or loss as incurred.

iii Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off" the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an assel, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an item of property, plant and equipment which reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of (he lease
term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated over the useful life.
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The estimated uselul lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Land and Buildings

- Leasehold Land Lease period

- Buildings 10 to 25 years
Plant and Machinery 10 to 20 years
Furniture and Fittings 5 years
Automotive equipment 4 to 10 years
Compuler equipment 3 years
Office equipment 5 vears

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. The attributable cost of each asset is translerred to the
relevant asset category immediately the asset is available for use and depreciated accordingly.

(d) Intangible assets

(e

—

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The Company’s intangible assets with finite useful lives comprise acquired software,

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific intangible asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in prolit or loss as

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amartisation is calculated over the cost ol the asset, or other amount substituted for cost. less its residual
value. Amortisation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benelits embodied in the asset. There is no new addition to
intangible assets in the current period.

Amortisation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate. The useful life for computer software is 3 years,

Leases

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Al inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a
lease. At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement, the Company separates payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those lor other elements on the
basis of their relative fair values. If the Company concludes lor a finance lease that it is impracticable to
scparate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability arc recognised at an amount equal to the fair
value of the underlying asset, Subsequently. the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed
finance cost on the liability is recognised using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.

2016
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ii Leased assets
Assets held by the Company under leases that transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and
rewards ol ownership are classified as finance leases. The leased assets are measured initially at an amount
equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that
asset.

Assets held under other leases are classilied as operating leases and are not recognised in the Company's
statement of linancial position.

iii Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
ol the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part ol the total lease expense. over the
term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under lnance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the
reduction ol the outstanding liability. The finance expensc is allocated to each period during the lease lerm

50 s (o produce a constanl periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

(f) Inventorics
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value, The cost of inventorics includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the casc of manufactured/ blended inventories
and work in progress, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operaling capacity.

The basis of costing inventories are as lollows:

Product Type Cost Basis
Refined petroleum products
(i)

( AGO, ATK, PMS . DPK)
Refined petroleum product
(i1) First in First Qut (FIFO)
{ LPG)

Packaging materials ,
lubricants and greascs

Weighted average costs incurred (for regulated products reduced by the
value of subsidics due)

Weighted average cost

Inventories-in-transit Purchase cost incurred to date

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. Inventory values are adjusted for obsolete. slow-moving or
defective items.

(g) Impairment

i Non-derivative financial assets
Financial assets nol classified at fair value through profit or loss are assessed at each reporting date 1o
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
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Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

default or delinquency by a debtor:

restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise:

indications that a deblor or issuer will enter bankruptey:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers:

the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a group of
financial assets

The Company considers evidence ol impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and collective
level, All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those lound not to be
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually
identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively asscssed for impairment. Collective
assessmeni is carried oul by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics,

In assessing collective impairment. the Company uses historical information on timing of recoveries and
the amount of loss incurred, and makes adjustment il current cconomic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account, When the Company considers that there
are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset. the relevant amounts are written off. 1T the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised. then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

i Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrving amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
inventories and deferred tax asscts) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 1T any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing. asscts arc grouped together into the smallest group of assels that generates cash
flows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets or cash generating
units (CGUs).

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater ol its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is hased on the estimated luture cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset or CGU,

An impairment loss is recognized il the carrving amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount,

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the assel's carrying amounl does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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(h) Employee benefits

i Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan (pension fund) under which the Company
pays fixed contributions into & separate entity. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sulficient assets 1o pay all employces the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014, the Company has instituted a defined
contribution pension scheme for its permanent staff. Employees contribute 6% each of (heir basic salary,
transport and housing allowances to the Fund on a monthly basis. The Company’s contribution is 12% of
cach employee’s basic salary, transport and housing allowances. Staff contributions to the scheme are
funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s contribution is recognised in profit or loss as
employee benelit expense in the periods during which services are rendered by emplovees.

Other long-term employee benefits
The Company’s other long-term employee benefits represents a Long Service Award scheme instituted for

all permanent employees. The Company’s obligations in respect of this scheme is the amount of future
benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The benefit
is discounted to determine its present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on Federal
Government of Nigeria issued bonds that have maturity dates approximating the (erm of the Company’s
obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit method. Remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Although the scheme was not funded, the
Company ensured that adequate arrangements were in place to meet its obligations under the scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the carlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benelils and when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring. I benefits are not expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months of the end ol the reporting period. then they are discounted.

iv Short-term employee benefits

(i

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonuses if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outllow of cconomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding ol the discount is recognized as finance cost,
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Fulure
operating losses are not provided [or.
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A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost ol meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established. the Group
recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Contingent liabilities

A conlingent liability is a possible obligation that arises [rom past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company. or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation: or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,
Contingent liabilities are only disclosed and not recognised as liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

(i) Revenue

(k)

(h

Revenue from the sale of non-regulated products in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of value added tax, sales returns, trade discounts and
volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists that the significant risks and
rewards ol ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, there is
no continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. [T it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably. then the
discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised.

Revenue for regulated products is measured at the regulated price of the products. The timing of the
transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on whether the customer collects the products himsell or the
Company delivers to the customer using the third party transporters. For the former. revenuc is recognized
when the customer picks up the products from the Company's depots and the later, when delivery is made.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprising of interest income on funds invested, foreign currency gain on financial assets
and [inancial liabilitics. and reimbursement of any foreign exchange gain or loss or interest from
Petroleum Product Pricing Regulatory Agency (PPPRA). Finance income is recognized as it accrues in
profit or loss, using the effective interest method.

Finance cosls compriscs interest expense on borrowings, bank charges, foreign currency loss on financial
assels and financial liabilities, unwinding of the discount on provisions and are recognized in profit or loss
using the effective interest method. Finance costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset which are capitalised as part of the related assets.

Foreign currency gains and losses arc reported on a net basis,

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to jtems recognized directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates statutorily enacted at the reporting date. and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years,
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(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

The Company offsets the tax asscts arising from WHT credits and current tax liabilities if, and only if, the
entity has a legally enforceable right 10 set off the recognised amounts, and it intends either (o settle on a
net basis, or (o realise the asset and seitle the liability simultancously. The tax assel is reviewed at each
reporting date and written down 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that luture cconomic benefit
would be realised.

Deferred tax

Deferred lax is recognised in prolit or loss except to the extent that it relales to a transaction that is
recognised directly in equity. A delerred tax asset is recognised for unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the amount will be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only il certain eriteria are met,

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporling purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognized for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affecis neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company presents basic and diluted carnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is caleulated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Campany by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted lor own sharcs held, for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may carn revenues and incur expenses. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by
the Managing Director to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Managing Director include items directly attributable 1o a segment
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Statement of cash flows

The staterment of cash flows is prepared using the indirect method. Changes in statement of financial
position items that have not resulted in cash Mows have been eliminated for the purpose of preparing the
statement. Dividends paid to ordinary shar¢holders are included in financing activitics. Finance costs paid
is also included in financing activities while finance income is included in investing activities.

Government grants

Petroleum Products Pricing Regulatory Agency (PPPRA) subsidies which compensate the Company for
losses made on importation of certain refined petroleum products are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be recovered and the Company has complied with the conditions attached to
receiving the subsidy, The subsidics are recognised as a reduction to the landing cost of the subsidised
petroleum product.
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(q) Joint arrangement
The Company’s joint arrangement is in respect of ils interests in joint aviation facilities held with other
partics. These Financial Statements include the Company’s share of assets, liabilitics. revenue and
expenses of the joint arrangement.

(r) Share capital
The Company has only one class of shares, ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. When
new shares are issued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value, The excess of the issue price is
recorded in the share premium reserve.

[ncremental costs directly attributable (o the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects are recognised
as a deduction from equity,

4(a) Standards and Interpretations not yet effective (but available for early adoption)

A number ol standards. amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after | January 2017, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those
which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not plan to adopt these
standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory unless otherwise
indicated.

Effective for the financial year commencing 1 January 2017
= Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to 1AS 7)
* Recognition of deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amencdments to 145 12)

Effective for the financial year commencing 1 January 2018

* [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

= IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

= Classification and measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to [FRS 2)

* Applving IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments ta 1FRS 4)
* IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

* Transfers of [nvestment Property (Amendments to IAS 40)

= Annual improvemenis 1o [FRSs 2014 - 2016 Cyele

Effective for the financial year commencing 1 January 2019
* IFRS 16 Leases

Standard available for optional adoption

* Sale or contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendmems to
IFRS 10 and [AS 28)

All Standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those Standards and
Interpretations that are not applicable to the entity),

Classification and measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2), Applying
[FRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (Amendments to IFRS 4), Recognition of
deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments 1o [AS 12). Transfers of Investment Property
(Amendments to 1AS 40). Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(Amendments o IFRS 4). Sale ar Cantribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Fenture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28) are not applicable to the business of the entity and will
therefore have no impact on (uture financial statements,
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IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

This standard replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts. 1AS 18 Revenue, 1FRIC 13 Customer Lovaly:
Programmes . 1FRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate. IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets
Jrom Customers and S1C-31 Revenue — Barter of Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches (o
recognising revenue: at a point in time or over time. The model features a contraci-based five-siep analysis
of transactions to determine whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. This new standard will
most likely have a significant impact on the Company, which will include a possible change in the timing
of when revenue is recognised and the amount of revenue recognised.

The Company is yel to carry-out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial application o IFRS
13 could have on its business: however, the Company will adopt the standard for the vear ending 31
December 2018.

IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenis

On 24 July 2014, the IASB issued the (inal IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which replaces earlier
versions of IFRS 9 and completes the 1ASB’s project 1o replace 1AS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement .

IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments. a new
expecled credit loss model for caleulating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge
accounting requirements, It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments from [AS 39,

The Company is yet to carry-out an assessment to determine the impact that the initial application of IFRS
9 could have on its business: however. the Company will adopt the standard for the year ending 31
December 2018,

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)

The amendments provide for disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities. including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash
changes. This inlcudes providing a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances arising from
financing activities,

IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration
The amendments provide guidance on the transaction date to be used in determining the exchange rate for
translation of oreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or receipt.

The amendments clarifies that the transaction date is the date on which the Company initially recognises
the prepayment or deferred income arising from the advance consideration, For transactions involving
multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to a separale transaction date.

The interpretation applies when a Company:

* pays or receives consideration in a foreign currency; and

* rccognises a non-monetary asset or liability — eg. non-refundable advance consideration — before
recognising the related ilem.

The Company will adopt the amendments for the year ending 31 December 2018.
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IFRS 16 Leasees

IFRS 16 replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease , SIC-
15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invelving the
Legal Form of a Lease

The standard sets out the principles lor the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
lor both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (*lessee’) and the supplier (lessor’). IFRS 16 eliminates the
classification of leases as operating leases or finance leases as required by IAS 17 and introduces a single
lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a lessce is required to recognise:

a. assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value; and

b. depreciation of lease assets separately [rom interest on lease liabilities in the profit or loss.

For the lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in 1AS 17.
Accordingly. a lessor continues to classily its lcases as operating leases or finance leases, and (o account
for those two types of leases dilTerently.

The Company is yel to carry out an assessment (o determine the impact that the initial application of IFRS
16 could have on its business: however, the Company will adopt the standard for the year ending 31
December 2019,

4(b) The following Standards and amendments to Standards applicable to the business of the entity and which
became effective during the year do not have a significant impact on the Company's financial statements:

« Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to [45 1)

* dAccounting for Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 1)

* Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amartistion (Amendments to 145 16 and
145 38)

* Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to 148 27)

« Annual Improvements to 1FRSs 2012-2014 Cvele - various stendards

s Investment Entities: Applving the Consolidation Exception (Amendnenis to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
148 28)
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Revenue 2016 2015
000 000

Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) 74.750.074 67.998,973
Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK) 9.631.463 11.071.777
Automotive Gas Oil (AGO) 13.264.504 3.655.399
Lubricants and greases 3.417.651 2.491.537
Dual Purpose Kerosene (DPK) 8.571.362 1.862,233
Liquiditied Petroleum Gas (1.PG) - 19.097
109.635,054 87.099.216

Other income 2016 2015
2000 =000

Rental and lease income (Note 6(a)) 26,371 25,932
Sundry income (Note 6(h)) 593,801 819,702
Gain on sale of property, plant & equipment 44.274 -
Income on storage services 623.024 399,575
Total 1.287.470 1,445,200

Rental and lease income relates to income earned on assets that are on lease ([nance and operating leases) to
third parties. Assets on fease include filling stations and related equipment (generators and dispenser pumps).

Sundry income represents service fees lor handling and other fees carned in the delivery of products,

Expenses by nature 2016 2015

=000 =000
Depreciation 1.498.434 1,555,932
Amortization of intangible assets 13,819 36,222
Changes in inventories of lubes, greases and refined products 100,918,883 80,670,719
Rental of service stations, buildings and equipment 223,835 176.616
Advertising expense 228.926 73,435
Consultancy expense 360,569 329.986
Maintenance expense 607,950 305,436
Throughput expense 35,347 77,063
Freight expense 483.861 800,715
Management fees (Note 26 (¢)) 275.500 708.936
Director's remuneration 1,928 6.678
Employee benefit expense (Note 9 (b)) 671,315 548,710
Auditor's remuneration 30.000 30,000
Impairment loss on employee and other receivables 61.580 3.365
Impairment loss/write back on trade receivables 157.919 88.816
Write oft of other receivables 9.504 -
Wrile off of property. plant & equipment 34,394 -
Local and international travel 135346 88,169
Office expenses and supplies 231,482 177.639
Communication and postage 351.680 169.070
Fines and penaltics 3,204 -
Insurance premium 138,342 123,685
Contract labour 720.260 511,410
Sponsorships and donations 9.886 26,782
Licenses and Levies 57.281 47.820
Utilities 48,011 33.461
Suberiptions 4,397 2.434
Board meetings and AGM expenses 87.664 45,295
Security 44.359 36.170
Other expenses 164,918 239.300
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution and administrative expenses 107.632.994 86,933,904
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7(h) Expenses by function

2016 2015

2000 =000
Cost of sales 100.879.939 80.676.760
Selling and distribution expenses 1,303,993 1.150.744
3,449,062 3,106,400

Administrative expenses

107,632,994 86,933,904

8  Finance income and finance costs 2016 2015
='000 =000
Finance income
Interest income on short-term bank deposits 607.493 320,495
PPPRA reimbursement on interest and loreign exchange differential (a) - 1,354,914
Interest income on loans to transporters (Note 14) 26.095 33,116
Total finance income (633588 1,730,525
Finance cost
Interest expense 358.430 342,323
Bank charges 72.407 75,435
Net foreign exchange loss 1.204.934 1.462.445
Total finance costs 1.635.771 1.880.203
Net finance costs 1,002,183 149,678

(a) This amount represents net interest / foreign exchange differential cost claims received from PPPRA arising from
delayed subsidy payments relating to products imported.

9 Profit before income tax 2016 2015

(1) Profit before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting):
2000 =000
Depreciation (Note 12) |.498.434 1.555,932
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 13) 13.819 56.222
Management fees (Note 26(c)) 275.500 708.936
Director's remuneration (Note 9(b)(iv)) 1,028 6.678
Employee benelit expense (Note 9(h)(i)) 671,315 548,710
Auditor's remuneration 30,000 30,000
Giain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (44.274) .
Write off of property. plant and equipment 54,594 .
PPPRA reimbursement on interest and foreign exchange difterential i (1,354,914)
Net foreign exchange loss (Note 8) 1.204.934 1.462.445

(b) Directors and employees
i Employee costs during the year comprise:

2016 2015
™' 000 000
Salarics and wages 441.056 371,609
Other employee benefits 175,146 126,770
Employer's pension contribution 49113 43,449
Other long term employee benefit charge 6.000 6,882
671.315 548.710
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i The average number of full-time persons employed during the period (other than executive directors) was as

follows;

Administration

Technical and production
Operations and distribution
Sales and marketing

Number
2016 2015
48 20
20 2
23 26
39 k!
132 52

iti  Higher-paid employees of the Company and other than directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged
in Nigeria. received remuncration in excess of %1.000,000 (excluding pension contributions) in the following

ranges:

=
2,000,001
3,000,001
4,000,001
5,000,001
6,000,001
7,000,001
8,000,001
9.000,001
Above

v o o g ; y :
Directors' remuneration for directors of the Company charged to profit or loss account are as follows:

Fees
Other emoluments

The directors' remuneration shown above includes:

Chairman

Highest paid director

Other directors received emoluments in the following ranges:

N
Nil
1.000.001
2,000,001

Number

2016 2015
N
3.000,000 3 7
4,000.000 45 39
5,000,000 54 8
6,000,000 9 9
7.000,000 5 10
8.000.000 6 5
9.000.000 3 -
10,000,000 4 -
10,000,000 3 4
132 82
2016 2015
000 =000
1,678 1,250
25() 5.428
1.928 6.678
1.928 6,678
Number
2016 2015
=

2 2
2,000,000 I 1
3,000,000 1 ]

10 Earnings per share (EPS) and Dividend declared per share

(a) Basic EPS

Basic earnings per share of 33,77 (2015: N3.68 ) is based on profit attributable to ordinary sharcholders of

N1,465,905,000.00 (2015: 8935,625,000.00), and on the 253.988.672 ordinary sharcs of 50 kobo each, being
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issuc during the year (2015: 253,988.672).
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(b)

(c)

(1)

(b)

2016 2015

Profit lor the period atiributable to

sharcholders (expressed in Naira) 1.465.905.110 935.625.000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 253.988.672 253.988.672
5.77 3.08

Basic camings per share (expressed in Naira per share)

Diluted Earnings per share
The Company had no dilutive ordinary shares to be accounted for in these [inncial statements. Consequently.

diluted and basic carnings per share are the same,

Dividend declared per share
Dividend declared per share of 110 kobo (2015: 88 kobo) is based on total declared dividend of 3279,39 million
(2015: M223.51 million) on 233,988,672 (20135: 233,988.672) ordinary shares of 50 kobo each, being the ordinary

shares in issue during the year,

Income taxes

Income tax expense
The tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure and income, which

are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises:

Amounts recognized in profit or loss

2016 2015
=000 =000
Current tax expense:

Income tax 904,709 671,564
Tertiary education tax 68,220 63,463
Capital gains tax 3.853 .
Prior year under-provision 37.856 -
1,016,638 735,029

Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of temporary difTerences (195,196) (209.811)
821,442 525,218

Tax expense on operations

Reconciliation of effective tax rates
The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount as follows:

% 2016 % 2015
Profit before income tax 2287347 1,460,843
Ineome Lax using the statutory tax rate 30 686.204 30 438,253
Effect of:
Impact of capital gains tax - 5.853 -
Impact of tertiary education tax 3 68,220 4 (3.465
Effect of tax incentives - (7.837) )] (102.806)
Non deductible expenses 2 49,999 11 154,253
Tax exempl income (N (18.731) . 2
Changes in estimates related to prior years 1 29.937 - -
Prior vear under-provision 2 37.850 - -
Other dilferences (1) (30.062) (2) (27.947)
Total income tax expense in income
statement 36 821,440 36 525,218
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(€)

Movement in current tax liability

2016 2015

N'000 =000

Balance at beginning of the vear 991,830 1,217,783
Payments during the year (701.883) (939.113)
Net provision for the year 1.016.638 735,029
Withholding tax credit notes utilized (98,085) (21.869)
1,208,500 991,830

The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open Lax vears based on its
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax laws and prior experience.
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(b)

(d)

{a)

Impairment assessment

The carrying amount of the Company's net assets exceeded its market capitalization as at the year end. As a result of this,
management carricd out an impairment test as at 31 December 2016. Based on results of the test. the recoverable amount of
the Company's cash generating units (CGL) are higher than the carrying amount i.e fair value less costs of disposal exceeds
the carrying amount. None of the Company's assets were impaired as at the end of the year. (2015: Nil)

The Company holds various parcels ol land under lease arrangements. The maximum tenor of the lease is 99 years in line
with the Land Use Act. Thelease amounts were fully paid at the inception of the lease arrangements and these are
depreciated over the lease period. At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Tease land was N8.54 billion (2015:
#8.02 billion)

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure commitments at the period end authorised by the Board of Directors comprise;

2016 2015
2000 000
Capital commitments 393.423 541.805

Intangible assets
Intangible assets relate to the Company's accounting. soltware application package and license. The movement on these
accounts during the year was as follows:

2016 2015

000 2000
Cost
Balance as at | January 234,088 234,088
Additions 42,5935 -
Balance as at 31 December 276.683 234 088
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 January 232,944 176,722
Charge for the year (Note 7(a)) 13,819 56,222
Balance as at 31 December 246.763 232944
Carrying amount 29,920 1,144
Loans and receivables

2016 2015

=000 MN'000
Balance as at 1 January 606,983 909,115
Insurance 54,448 72,585
Interest accrued (Note T4(a)) 26,093 55.116
Principal and interests repayments received during the year (180.755) (429.831)
Impairment on Truck lease (Note 14(h)) (61,580) -
Balance as at 31 December 445,193 606,985

[nterest income earned with respect to these loans was ¥26.10 million (2015: M¥335.12 million) and has been included as
part of {inance income in profit or loss (Note 8). During the period, there were no additional cost incurred.
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(b)

(a)

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of loans and receivables during the year was as follows:
2016 2015
'000 ='000
Balance as at | January T i
Impairment loss recognised 61.5380 -
Balance as at 31 December 61,580 -

The Company. entered into an arrangement with some of its transporters to provide tankers o them. The transporlers are o
repay Lhe Company the cost of the tankers plus an interest of 17% per annum. The transporters were expected 1o repay their
obligations to the Company from freight costs charged to the Company for services rendered. The repayment periods range
from 12 to 24 months. The transporters made a 20% contribution al the commencement of the arrangement, The
oulstanding balance on the receivable from the transporters are secured by the Company's retention of title to the tankers.
Legal title will only be passed Lo the transporters once they have settled the outstanding balance.

In addition, in 2015, the arrangement was revised and the interest on outstanding payments was increased to 20% per
annum and the tenor was extended for another 12 months and the insurance payments on the trucks for the current period
was included as part of the new principal amount. During the year, the Company recorded an impairment of ¥61.58million
(2015: Nil) in respect ol certain transporiers whose recoverables are doubtful of recovery, On the basis of retention of title
as well as historical payment behaviours of the respective transporters (including continuing business as of date. repayments
during the year and adequate insurance cover on the tankers), the Company believes that the outstanding balances are

recoverable.
Trade and other receivahles

2016 2015
N'000 2000
Trade receivables (Note 15(a)) 5.295.575 3,697,155
Petroleum Equalisation Fund (PEF) 2,972,340 1.366,129
Petroleum Support Fund (PSF) (Note 15(b) 12,229,750 375,628
Loans to employees 35,466 27.470
Due from joint operation partners 30,670 38.077
Receivables from registrar 70.812 54,244
Reccivables from related parties 20,035,831 14,835,297
Advances paid to suppliers 2.713,092 -
Other debtors 209.264 127,185
43,592,800 20,521,185
Less: non-current portion (347,922) (1.211)
Current portion 43,244,878 20,519,974

For receivables that are classified as 'current', due to their short-term maturities, the fair value approximates their carrving

values,

Trade receivables 2016 2015
N'000 2000

Gross trade receivables 5.876.648 4,120,309

Impairment (581,073) (423,154)

Net trade receivables 5,295,575 3,697,155
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(b)

16

Included in the Petroleum Support Fund is an amount of 310.98 billion (2015: Nil) receivable from Petroleum Products
Pricing Regulatory Agency (PPPRA) with respect to interest on delayed payments and foreign exchange differences
between the rate used by the PPPRA in pricing Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) and the foreign exchange rate used by the
Company. The directors belicve this amount 1o be fully recovereable considering historical payment patterns of such
reccivables and based on their interactions with the PPPRA. Accordingly, no impairment has been recognised on this
amount. The related liability is included in short term borrowings (Sce Note 24(a)),

The Company's exposure to credil risk and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note 25
(a)

Witholding tax receivables
The movement on the witholding tax receivable account was as [ollows:

2016 2015

2000 000

Balance at | January 32,348 36,147

Additions 134.025 18.070

Withholding tax credit note utilised (98,083 (21.869)

Balance at 31 December 68,288 32,348
Inventories

2016 2015

MN'000 ¥'000

Premium Motor Spirit (PMS) 2,780,005 721.485

Lubricants and greases 1,898,422 1,869,542

Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK) 1.863,232 315,900

Automotive Gas Oil (AGO) 71,301 67,089

Dual Purpose Kerosene (DPK) 261.669 341,759

Packaging materials and other sundry items 129,544 28.167

Goods in Transit - 2916,541

7,004,173 6,260,483

Inventory amounting to ¥315.99 million (2015 : ¥377.93 million) was held in a facility owned by MRS Oil and Gas
Limited. a related party (Note 26).

The value ol changes in products, packaging materials and work-in-progress included in cost of sales amounted to ®100.92
billion (2013: H80.67 billion). In 2016 there was a reassessement of inventory which resulted in additional provision of
831.24 million (2015: 3¥29.47 million). The provision has been included in the cost of sales in the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income,

2016 2015

2000 2000

Gross inventory 7.082.378 6,307.453

Impairment (78.205) (46,970)

Nel inventory 7,004,173 6,260,483
Cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015

2000 2000

Cash at bank and on hand 2.059.224 1,301,602

Short term deposits with banks  (Note 18 (a)) 8.831,560 18.472.795

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position 10,910,784 19,774,397

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 10,910,784 19,774,397

49




MRS 0il Nigeria Ple
Annnal Report
31 December 2016

Notes to the financial statements

(a) Short term deposits with banks represent placements with commercial banks for periods between 0 - 90 days. [ncluded in

20
(a)

(h)

short term deposits are unclaimed dividends amounting to ®¥367.18 million (2015: ®¥408.79 million) held in separate bank
accounts in accordance with guidelines issued by Securitics and Exchange Commission. This amount is restricted from use
by the Company.

Also included in short term deposits with banks is a balance of #¥8.47 billion (2015: ¥7.49 billion) relating to sinking fund
account. The sinking fund accounts serve as collateral deposit Tor import financing held with the Company's Bankers (Note
24).

Share capital

2016 2015
Authorised: =000 2000
271.657.230 Ordinary shares of 50k cach 135.829 135,829
Issued and fully paid:
253,988,672 Ordinary shares of 30k each 126.994 126,994
Issued and fully allotted:
253.988.672 Ordinary shares of 50k cach 126,994 126,994

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Holders of these shares are entitled to
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company.

Employee benefit obligations
The amounts outstanding at the end of the year with respect to employee benefit obligations is shown below:

2016 2015
2000 27000

Year end obligations for:
Other long term employee benefits 13.891 12.618
Total employee benefit liabilities 13.891] 12,618

The provision was based on an independent actuarial valuation performed by Olurotimi Olatokunbo OQkpaise
(FRC/2012/NAS/00000000738), a partner with HR Nigeria Limited. The method of valuation used is the projected unit
credit method and the last valuation was as at 31 December 2016. Other long term employee benefits comprise long service
awards and it is funded on a pay as you go basis by the Company.

The movement on the provision for other long term employee benefits is as follows:

2016 2015
2000 000
Balance as at 1 January 12,618 16,307
Provision for the year :
Current service cost 4,582 4,694
Interest cost 1,418 2.188
Discontinued benefits due to contract change - (6.297)
Remeasurement gains (net) (3.176) (834)
Benefits paid by the employer (1,551) (3,440)
Balance as at 31 December 13.891 12.618
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(d) Actuarial Assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

2016 2015
Long-term average discount rate (p.a.) 15.8% 12%
Future average pay increase (p.a.) 12% 11%
Average rate of inflation (p.a.) 12% 9%
Average Duration in years (Long Service Awards) 6 7.29

These assumptions depict management’s estimate of the likely future experience of the Company.
Due to unavailability of published reliable demographic data in Nigeria, the demographic assumptions regarding future
mortality are based on the rates published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of Actuarics in the UK. The data were rated

down by one year to more accurately reflect mortality in Nigeria as lollows:

Mortality in Service

2016 2015
5 le
“;;E Number of deaths in year out of | Number of deaths in year out of
10,000 lives 10,000 lives
25 7 7
30 7 7
35 9 9
40 14 14
45 26 26

Withdrawal from Service

2016 | 2015
Age Band
e Bane Rates
<30 0.5% 0.5%
31-39 0,3% 0.5%
40 - 44 0.5% 0.5%
45 - 60 0.0% 0.0%

It is assumed that all the employees covered by the long service award scheme would retire at age 60 (2013: age 60),

Sensitivity Analysis
Below is the sensitivity analysis of the principal actuarial assumptions adopted in determining the employee benefit
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Long Service
Award

Discount rate
Salary increase rate
Inflation rate
Mortality rate

Age rated up by | year
Age rated down by | year

- 1%
+1%
1%
+1%
-1%

+1%

N'000
14.823
13,063
13.314
14.523
13,548
14,281

13.850
13.928

21 Security deposits

Security deposils

2016 2015
=000 =000

1,766,967 1.573.485

These are collateral deposits paid by dealers who maintain eredit facilities with the Company. These amounts are set-off on
a periodic basis Lo cater for probable losses from sales to customers. These deposils do not bear interest and are refundable

lo the dealers at the termination of the business arrangements.

The Company's exposure to liguidity risks related to security deposits is disclosed in Note 25 (b).

22 Dividends
(a) Declared dividends

The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company during the period.

N1.10 kobo per qualilying ordinary share (20135: 88 kobo)

2016 2015
2000 =000
279.388 223.510

Afier the respective dates, the following dividends were proposed by the Directors, The dividends have not been provided
for as they are only to be declared al the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. There are no income tax

consequences.

2016 2015

2'000 2000

173 kobo per qualifying ordinary share (2015: 110 kobo) 439,772 279,388
Dividend payable

2016 2015

N'000 N'000

Balance as at 1 January 399,889 427,995

Deelared dividend 279,388 223,510

Payments (267.959) (204,528)

Unclaimed dividend written back to retained carnings (see 22(i) below) < (47,088)

Balance as at 31 December 411,318 399,889

h
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(i)

(ii)

(a)

(b

—

(a)

{b)

Unclaimed dividends transferred 1o retained carnings represents dividends which have remained unclaimed for over twelve
(12) years and are iherefore no longer recoverable or actionable by the sharcholders in accordance with Section 385 of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act. Cap. C20, Laws of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, 2004,

As at 31 December 2016, dividend payable held by the Company amounted to N340.51 million (2015: 3345 million). The
balance of M70.81 million (2015: 354.24 million) are held with the Company’s registrar, CardinalStone (Registrars)

L.imited.

Trade and other payables

2016 2015

N'000 000

Trade payables 8.303.391 3.446,521
Accrued expenses 602.618 534,827
Amounts due to joint arrangement pariners 134,381 110,527
Advances received from customers 644.551 093,441
Bridging allowance 4,023,064 1,333,897
Amounts due to related parties 18,029 888 12,437,570
Pension payable (Note 23(a)) 9.903 752
Statutory deductions (Note 23(b)) 409,042 368,495
32,156,838 21,226,030

The balance on the pension payable account represents the amount due to Pension Fund Administrators which are yet to be
remitted at the end of the year. The movement on this account during the year was as follows:

2016 2015

¥'000 N'000

Balance as at | January 752 784
Contributions during the year 73,736 33,598
Payments during the year (64,585) (33,630)
9,903 752

Balance as at 31 December

This represents statutory deductions which are mandated by law or statute. They include Value Added Tax (VAT) and
Withholding Tax (WHT) liabilities and Pay As You Earn (PAYE) liabilitics. which are to be remitted to the relevant tax
authorities,

Short term borrowings

2016 2015

N'000 =000

Bank borrowings (Import Finance Facilities) (Note 24(b)) 18.526.556 16,400,466
Total Borrowings 18.526,556 16,400,466

Interest rates on these overdralt ranged between 18% to 20% per annum (2015: 18% to 22%). Where the fixed deposit held
is in excess of the overdralt, interest income is carned. There is no right of set-off between the overdrall and the deposits
held. The net interest expense incurred in the vear relating to overdralts and short term borrowings amounted to ¥315.70
million ( 2015: 8190.78 million).

Import Finance Fagilities represents short term borrowings obtained to fund letters of credits [or product importation. These
facilities are either secured with products financed. domiciliation of Petroleum Products Pricing Regulatory Agency
(PPPRA) payments or the Company’s sinking fund aceount with a balance of ™3.14 billion as at vear end (2015: ¥7.49
billion). The sinking fund account is included in the short term deposits (Note 18),

The fair value of current borrowings closely approximates their carrving amount. as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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Reconciliation of short term borrowings reccived to statement of cashilows is as [ollows:

2016 2015

000 2000

Changes in borrowings 2,126,090 6.582.105
Repayments 28.099.488 15.512.831
Exchange loss on borrowings (10,172,195) (160,121)
20.053.383 21.934.815

Financial Risk Management & Financial Instruments

The Company has exposure to the following risks [rom its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to cach of the above risks, the Company’s abjectives,
policics and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management ol capital. Further quantitative
disclosures are included throughout these financial statements,

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework, The Board has established the strategic and finance planning committee, which is responsible for developing
and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly by the strategic and linance planning committee to reflect changes in markel conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company. through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Company’s Audit Committee oversees how management monitors complianee with the Company’s risk management
policies and procedures. and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
Company, Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of compliance with established controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to Senior Management of the Company and the audit committee.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual ebligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and other related parties.

Trade and other receivables

Management has credit policies in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis by an established
credit committee headed by the Managing Director. Under the credit policies all customers requiring credit above a certain
amount are reviewed and new customers analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company's credit assessment process includes collecting cash
deposits [rom customers. These deposits are non inlerest bearing and refundable. net of any outstanding amounts (if any)
upon termination of the business relationship and are classified as current liability (Note 21). Credit limits are established
for qualifying customers and these limits are reviewed regularly by the Credit Committee. Customers that fail 1o meet the
Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Company only on a prepayment basis,
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The Credit Committee reviews each customer’s credit limit in line with the customers’ performance. feedback from sales
team and pereeived risk factor assigned to the customer.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according o their credit characteristics, including whether they
are an individual or a legal entity, whether they are a key distributor or retail distributor, geographic location, and existence
of previous financial difficulties. Customers with no trading activities for a period of up to one year are placed on a
dormant customer list, and future sales are made on a prepayment basis only with approval of management,

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate ol incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables. The main componenis of this allowance are a specilic loss component that relates to individually
significant exposures, customers with outstanding amounts that have not placed ordersfraded for a prolonged period of
time and a collective loss component established for groups ol similar assets in respect of losses thal have been incurred but
not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment slatistics.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables at the reporting date by type of counterparty was:

2016 2015
¥'000 N'000
Trade receivables
- Major customers 3,735,012 3,134,947
- Others 2.141.636 963,362
- Impairment (581,073) (423,154)
5,295,575 3,607,155
- Due from related parties 20.035.831 14,835,297
- Due from regulators (Government entities) 15,202,090 1,741,757
- Others* 346212 246,976
40,879,708 20,521,185
# Excludes advances paid to suppliers and withholding tax receivables
All the Company's trade receivables are due from customers within Nigeria.
As at year, the aging of trade receivables that were not impaired was as follows:
2016 2015
2000 2'000
Neither past due nor impaired 3.161.741 2,121,928
Past due 0-30 days 838,520 843,393
Past due 31-90 days 18.924 427,543
Past due 91 days and above 1.276.390 304,291
5,295,575 3,697,155

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as [ollows:

2016 2015

w000 =000

Balance as at 1 January 423,154 337.485
Impairment loss recognised 342,609 108,975
Bad debt written-olT - (3.147)
Reversal of impairment losses (184,690) (20.159)
581,073 423,154

Balance as at 31 December

The Directors have applied judgement in the Company's assessment of the recoverability of its trade and other receivables
which are past due but not impaired. The significant judgement involved estimation of future cashilows and the timing of
those cashflows. Based on the assessment of the Dircectors, these trade and other receivables are fully recoverable and
accordingly no impairment has been recorded.
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Due from Government entities

This comprises amount due from PPPRA with respect (o subsidies/PSF receivable on imporied products as well as amounts
receivable [rom PEF with respect to bridging claims,

Determination of amounts due are based on existing regulations/ guidelines and impairment is only rccognized when
changes occur in the regulations/ guidelines that prohibit or limit recovery ol previously recognized amounts, For bridging
claims amounting to #2.97 billion recognized as receivable (Note 15). possibilities exist depending on negoliations that
seltlement will oceur via a set off to the extent of bridging allowances amounting to N4.02 billion recorded as a liability
(Note 23). However. as the right of set off does not cxist. the amounts have been presented gross in these financial

statements.

Due from related parties _ ; s
The Company has transactions with its parent and other related partics who are related to the Company by virtue of being

members of the MRS Group. Payment terms are usually not established for transactions within the Group companies and
amounts receivable from members of the Group are not impaired except the member is facing bankrupicy. In the directors
view, all amounts are collectible. No impairment was recorded with respeet Lo amounts due from related parties in the
current period (Dec 2015: Nil).

Other receivables

Other receivables includes stafl debtors and other sundry receivables, The Company reviews the balances due from this
calegory on a periodic basis taking into consideration functions such as continued business/employment relationship and
ability 1o offset amounts against transactions due to these parties. Where such does not exist, the amounts are impaired.
There were no Impairment loss recognised in this category during the year. (2015: Nil).

Loans and receivables
Loans receivable comprise amounts loaned to some of the Company's transporters, See Note 14, All the transporters still

carry out business with the Company as at the period end and the balances due as at year end are secured with title to the
trucks that were [inanced.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of #10.91 billion as at 31 December 2016 (20135: 819.77 billion). which
represents its maximum credit exposure on these assets, The cash and cash equivalents (with the exception of ¥0, 72
million held as cash by the Company) are held by banks and financial institutions in Nigeria, which are regulated by the
Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as [ar as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unaceeptable losses or risking damage to the Company s reputation.

The Company has a clear focus on ensuring sufficient access to capital to finance growth and to relinance maturing debt
obligations. As part of the liquidity management process, the Company has various credit arrangements with some banks
which can be utilised (o meet its liquidity requirements.

Typically the credit terms with customers are more favourable compared 1o payment terms to its vendors in order to help

provide sufficient cash on demand 1o meet expected  operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations.
This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted. such as natural disasters.

The lollowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding the
impact of netting agreements,
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ryi al cash
Carrying Contractual ¢ & ke Gy Tese

Notes amount flows

=000 ND00 2000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
31 December 2016
Overdraft and other short-term borrowings 24 18.526,556 18.526.556 18.526.556
Dividend payable 22 411,318 411318 411,318
Trade and other payubles® 23 31.103.245 31,103,245 31.103.245
Security deposits 21 1.766.967 1.766,967 1,766,967

51,808,086 51,808,086 51,808,086
31 December 2015
Overdraft and other short-term borrowings 24 16,400,466 16.400.466 16,400,466
Dividend payable 22 399,889 399.889 399,889
Trade and other payables® 23 19,864,094 19.864.094 19.864.094
Security deposits 21 1.573.485 1,573,485 1.573.485

38,237,934 38,237,934 38,237,934

#* Excludes advances received from customers and tax liabilities

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as loreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will
alfect the Company’s income or the value ol ils holdings of financial instruments. The objective ol market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters. while optimizing the return.

The Company manages market risks by keeping costs low through various cost optimization programs. Moreover, market
developments are monitored and discussed regularly, and mitigating actions arc taken where necessary.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales and purchases and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company. primarily the Naira, The currency in which these transactions primarily are
denominated is US Dollars (USD). The currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign exchange rates.

In managing currency risk. the Company aims o reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on carnings. The Company
has no export sales. thus the exposure 1o currency risk in that regard is non existent. The Company’s significant exposure (o
currency risk relates to its importation of various products for resale or for use in production. Although the Company has
various measures to mitigate exposure to foreign exchange rale movement, over the longer lerm, however, permanent
changes in exchange rates would have an impact on profil. The Company monitors the movement in the currency rales on
an ongoing basis.

Exposure to currency risk
The Company’s transactional exposure to Naira (NGN) was based on notional amounts as follows:

In thousands December 2016 December 2015
USD'000 usD'oono

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables 80 22,772

Cash and cash cquivalents 2,766 2,851

Financial liabilities

Short- term borrowings (60.843) (82.648)

Trade and other pavables (36.624) (62,706)

Net statement of financial position exposure N (94.621) (119.731)
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Sensitivity analysis
A strengthening of the Naira, as indicated below against the Dollar at 31 December would have increased profit or loss by
the amounts shown below, This analysis is based on loreign currency exchange rate variances that the Company considered
to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period and has no impact on equity.

Increase in profit or loss

31 December 2016 2000
USD (20 percent strengthening) 5,762,432
31 December 2015

4.705.415

USD (20 percent strengthening)

A weakening ol the Naira against the dollar at 31 December would have had the equal but opposite effeet to the amounls
shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year

Average rate Reporting date spot rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
M M g N
252.69 192.64 304.50 196.50

US Dollar

Interest rate risk profile
In managing interest rate risk, the Company aims 1o reduce the impact of short-term fuctuations in earnings. 12ividend pay-
oul practices seck a balance between giving good returns to sharcholders on one hand and maintaining a solid debt/equity

ratio on the other hand.

Al the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was;
Carrying amount

2016 2015
000 N'000

Fixed rate instruments
Bank overdraft and borrowings 18,526,556 1 6,400,466

The Company does not account for any [lixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
Therefore a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

Capital risk management

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor. creditor and market confidence and 1o
sustain future developmeni of the business. The Company monitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt”" to equity.
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings less cash and eash equivalents.
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The Company s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting vear was as follows:

2016 2015

5000 N'000

Total borrowings (Note 24) 18.526.556 16.400.466
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) (10,910,784) (19.774,397)
Adjusted net debt 7.615.772 (3.373.931)
Total equity 22.163.841 20.977.324
Total capital emploved 29,779,613 17,603,393
0.34 (0.16)

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio

There were no changes in the Company's approach Lo capital management during the year,

The Company is not subjeet to externally imposed capital requirements.

Fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts

The lollowing table shows the carrying amounts and [air values of lnancial assets and Nnancial Labilities. 1 does not
include fair value mformation for Mnancial assets und Nnancial liabilities not measured at air value subseguent to initial
recognition, because the carrving amounts are a reasonable approximation of Fair values.

The Company's financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Carrying amount

Loans and Other financial Total
receivables linbilities
31 December 2016 N'000 N'000 2000
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Trade and other receivables 40.879.708 - 40.879,708
Loans and receivables 445,193 - 445,193
Cash and cash equivalents 10,910,784 - 10,910,784
52,235,683 - 52.235.685
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Short term borrowings - 18.526.556 18.526.556
Trade and other payables - 31,103,245 31,103,245
Security deposils - 1.766.967 1,766,967
Dividend payable - 411.318 411,318
- 51,808,086 31,808,086

Carrying amount

Loans and Other financial Total
receivables liabilities
31 December 2013 A'000 #7000 N'000
Financial assets not measured
at fair value
Trade and other receivables 20.521.185 - 20,521,185
Loans and receivables 606,985 - 606,985
Cush and cash equivalents 19.774.397 - 13,114,626
40.902.567 - 34.242.796
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Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Short term borrowings - 16.400.466 16,400,466
Trade and other payables - 19,864,094 19,864,094
Security deposits - 1.573.485 1.573.485
Dividend payable - 399,889 399.889

- 38.237.934 38.237.934

Trade and other receivables, security deposits, bank overdrafts and other short term borrowings are the Company’s short
term financial instruments, Accordingly, management belicves that their fair values are not expecied to be materially
different from their carrving values.

Related party transactions

Parent and ultimate controlling entity

As at the vear ended 31 December 2016, MRS Alrica Holdings Limited (incorporated in Bermuda) owned 60% of the
issued share capital of MRS Oil Nigeria Ple. MRS Alrica Holdings Limited is a subsidiary ol Corlay Global SA. The
ultimate holding company is Corlay Global SA incorporated in Panama.

The Company entered into the following transactions with the under-listed related parties during the year:

(a) MRS Oil and Gas Limited (MOG)

(b

[

MOG is a wholly owned company of MRS Holdings Limited which is a shareholder in Corlay Global SA. Corlay
Global SA is the ultimate holding company of MRS Qil Nigeria Ple. The following transactions occurred during the

year:

Nature of transactions 2016 2015

2000 2000
Sales of goods 18,464,238 26,900,941
StafT Secondment (219.723) (192,660)
Other services - 164,756
Reimbursements lor expenses - 724225

Purchase of goods

The value of products stored by MRS Oil and Gas Limited lor the Company amounting lo ¥315.99 million (2015:
M377.4 million).

Net balance due from MRS OQil and Gas Limited was N6.23 billion (2013: M8.91 billion).

Petrowest SA (Petrowest)

Patrice Albert is Non-executive director on the Board of MRS Qil Nigeria Ple. He is also a director in Petrowest SA.
The following transactions occurred during the period:

2016 2015
Nature of transactions =000 2’000
Purchase of goods (17,140,228) (25,197,5335)
Goods in transit = (2.916.541)

Net halance due to Petrowest was N4.13 billion (2015: M6.33 hillion)
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MRS Holdings Limited owns 50% of the shares in Corlay Global SA, the parent company o MRS Africa Holdings
Limited. MRS Africa Holding Limited has a majority sharcholding in MRS Oil Nigeria Plc.

Nature of transactions

Management lees
Sale of goods
Shared services

Net balance due from MRS Holdings Limited was #27.52 million (2015: ¥285.71 million)

Net balances due (to)/from other related entities were as follows:

MRS Benin

Corlay Togo

Corlay Benin

Corlay Cote D'Ivoire
Corlay Cameroun
Others

Total

2016 2015
=000 =000
(275.500) (708.936)
111.607 76.154
32,567 48,269
2016 2015
N'000 5'000
41,941 24,312
(3.921) (6.015)
344 (44,736)
(86.164) (55.216)
3.770 (35.463)

- (140,000)
(44.030) (257.117)

The Corlay entities are subsidiaries of Corlay Global SA incorporated in Panama, the parent company of MRS Africa
Holdings Limited. and thereby affiliates of MRS Qil Nigeria Ple.

All outstanding balances do not bear interest and exclude value of products stored by MRS Oil and Gas Limited lor the
Company amounting to ¥315.99 million (20135: ¥377.4 million).

(e)

Summary of intercompany receivables and payables:

2016 2015
Receivables Payables Receivables Pavables
2000 000 ='000 #'000
MRS Oil and Gas Limited (MOG) 17.566.746 (11.338.953) 13,162,538 (4.258.539)
MRS Holdings Limited 2,423.030 (2,450,551) 1.672.773 (1.387.048)
Petrowest - (4,150,300) - (6,534,866)
MRS Benin 41.941 - - 24312
Corlay Togo - (3.921) - (6,015)
Corlay Benin 344 - - (44.736)
Corlay Cote [Ylvoire - (86.164) - (55.216)
Corlay Cameroun 3.770 - - (35.463)
Other - - - {140,000)
20.035.831 (18.025,888) 14.835.311 (12.437.570)

(i1) Key management personnel compensation
The Company pays short term benelits (o its directors as follows:

Short term employee benefits

2016 2015
2000 000
1.928 6.678

6l



MRS Qil Nigeria Ple
Anmnnal Report
31 December 2016

Notes to the financial statements

(iii)

(i)

(i)
(iii)

The managing dircetor is seconded {rom a related party (MRS Oil and Gas Limited) as part of the management fees
agreement existing between the Company and MRS Holdings Limited.

Related Party Transactions above 5% of total tangible assets

In line with Nigerian Stock Exchange - Rules Governing Transactions with Related Parties or Interested Persons, the
Company has disclosed transactions with related parties which are individually or in aggregate greater than 3% of the total
tangible assets. The total tangible assets amounted to N18.33 billion and the 5% disclosure limit is N916.6 million. During
the year, the Company has entered into transactions above the 3% disclosure limit with the following related parties:

2016 2015

2000 2000

MRS il and Gas Limited ( Sce Note 26(a) above) 18.244.515 27.597.262
Petrowest SA ( See Note 2b(b) above) (17.140,228) (28,114.076)

Segment reporting

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 8 — Operaling Segments, the operating scgments used to present segment
information were identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Board of Directors Lo allocate resources
to the segments and assess their performance. The Managing Dircctor is MRS O] Nigeria Ple’s “Chief operating decision
maker” within the meaning of IFRS 8.

Segment information is provided on the basis of product segments as the Company manages its business through three
product lines - Retail/Commercial & Industrial, Aviation, and Lubricants. The business segments presented reflect the
management structure of the Company and the way in which the Company’s management reviews business performance.
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as described in Note 3.

The Company has identified three operating segments:

Retail/ Commercial & Industrial - this scgment is responsible for the sale and distribution of petroleum products (refined
products) to retail customers and industrial customers.

Aviation - this segment involves the sale ol Aviation Turbine Kerosene (ATK).

Lubricants - this segment manufactures and sells lubricants and greases,

Segment assets and liabilitics are not disclosed as these are not regularly reported to the Chief Operating decision maker,

Segment revenue and cost of sales

Revenue Cost of sales Gross profit
2016 M'000 % of Total #'000 % ol Total #'000 % of Total
Retail/C&l 96,583,940 38 89,943,231 89 6.642.709 76
Aviation 9.631.463 9 8.571.763 8 1,039,700 12
L.ubes 3.417.651 3 2.364.945 2 1.052.706 12
Total 109,635,054 100 100,879,939 100 8,755,115 100
Revenue Cosl of sales Gross profit
2015 =000 % of Tolal N7000 % ol Total =000 % of Total
Retail/Cé&l 73,535,902 84 68,581,438 85 4.954.464 77
Aviation 11.071.777 13 10.400.121 13 671,656 10
L.ubes 2,491,537 3 1.693.201 2 796,336 12
Total 87,099,216 100 80,676,760 100 6,422,456 100
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30

Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that could have had a material effect on the financial position of the Company as

at 31 December 2016 and on the profit for the year ended on that date that have not been taken into account in these

financial statements.

Contingencies

Pending litigations and elaims

There are certain lawsuits and claims pending against the Company in various courts of law which are being handled by
external legal counsels. The total claims in respect of pending litigations amounted to ¥19 billien as at 31 December 2016
(2015: ¥17 billion). In the opinion of the directors and based on independent legal advice. the Company’s liabilitics are not
likely to be material. thus no provision has been made in these financial statements.

Financial commitments

The Directors are of the opinion that all known liabilitics and commitments. which are relevant in assessing the state of
alfairs ol the Company. have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial stalements.

Prepayments

2016 2015

¥'000 3'000

Operating leases 698,114 484318
Other prepayments 213,089 139,176
011.203 643.494

The Company leases a number of offices, buses. warchouses and service stations under both cancellable and non-
cancellable leases. During the year, an amount of M223.84 million (2015: ¥176.62 million) was recognized as an expense
in profit or loss in respect of operating leases. Lease rentals are paid uplront and included in prepayments (current and non-
current). which are amoriised to profit or loss over the life ol the lease except lor leases [or buses that are paid in arrears on

a monthly basis.

2016 2015

N'000 2000

Non-current portion 578.073 354,303
Current portion 333,130 289.191
911.203 643.494

2016 2015

000 N'000

Opening balance 643.494 691.002
Addition 706,747 497,203
Release 1o P&L (439.038) (544.713)
Closing balance 911,203 643,494

Non-audit services provided by KPMG Professional Services
During the year, the [ollowing non-audit services were provided by KPMG Professional Services:

(a) Filing of transfer pricing returns for 2016 financial year. The total amount charged was N2,500,000,

(b) Tax regulatory complaince services for year ended 31 December 2016. The total amount charged was N23.500.000.
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Value added statement
For the year ended 31

December 2016 % December 2015 %

MN'000 2000
Revenue 109,635,054 87.099.216
Bought in materials and services
- Imported (36.036,491) (36,036.491)
- Local (69,412.935) (48,736,549)
4,185,628 2,326,176
Other income 1,287,470 1,445,209
Finance income 633,588 1,730,525
Value added by operating activities _ 6,106,686 100 5,501,910 100
Distribution of Value Added
To Government as:
Taxes and duties 821.442 13 525,218 10
To Employees:
Salaries, wages, fringe and end of service benefits 671,315 I 548,710 10
To Providers of Finance:
- Finance cost 1,635,771 27 1,880.203 34
Retained in the Business
To maintain and replace:
- Property, plant and equipment 1.498.434 25 1,555,932 28
- Intangible assets 13,819 - 56,222 1
Proposed dividend 439,772 7 279388 5
To augment retained earnings 1.026.133 17 656,237 12
Value added 6,106,686 100 5,501,910 100
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Financial summary

Statement of comprehensive income

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
Revenue 109,635,054  87.099.216  92,325405  87.786,323  79.727.349
Results from operating activities 3,289,530 1,610,521 2431,918  (1,092,618) 1,587,900
Profit before taxation 2,287,347 1,460,843 1,282,053 1,407,143 378,755
Profit for the year 1,465,905 935,625 746,404 634,418 205,121
Comprehensive income for the year 1,465,905 035,625 746,404 634,418 208,846
Ratios
Earnings per share (Kobo) 577 368 294 250 31
Declared dividend per share (Kobo) 110 88 74.93 23.34 70
Net assets per share (kobo) 8.726 8,259 7.960 7.728 7.502

Statement of financial position
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012

Employment of Funds 2000 2000 #'000 N'000 N000
Property, plant and equipment 18,402,454 19,053,705 20,212.384 21,351,269 22,013,568
Intangible assets 29,920 1,144 57.366 81,320 140,560
Loans and receivables - - - 655,229 -
Trade and other receivables 347,922.00 1,211 2,044 5,361 7,507
Prepayment 578,073.00 354,303 297,014 303,594 236,673
Net current assets 7,936,267 6,891,678 5,187,530 3,229 334 3,112,717
Employee benefit obligation (13,891) (12,618) (16,307) (15,541) (218.415)
Deferred tax liability (5,116,904) (5,312,099) (5,521,910) (5.981,619) (6,238,600)
Net assets 22,163,841 20,977,324 20,218,121 19,629,147 19,054,010

Funds Employed

Share capital 126,994 126,994 126,994 126,994 126,994

Retained earnings 22,036,847 20,850,330 20,091,127 19,502,153 18,927,016
22,163,841 _ 20,977,324 20,218,121 19,629,147 19,054,010
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 60(2) OF INVESTMENT AND
SECURITIES ACT NO. 29 OF 2007

We the undersigned hereby certify the following with regards to our Financial report for the year
ended December 3 1. 2016 that:

(a) We have reviewed the report;

(b)  To the best of our knowledge, the report does not contain:
(i) Any untrue statement of a material fact, or
(ii) Omit to state a material fact, which would make the statements, misleading in the light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made;

(c) To the best of our knowledge, the financial statement and other financial information
included in the report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition and
results of operation of the Company as of and for the periods presented in the report.

(d) We:
(i) Are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls.
(i) Have designed such internal controls to ensure that material information relating to
the Company, particularly during the period in which the periodic reports are being
prepared;

(e) We have disclosed to the auditors of the company and the audit committee:
() Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have significant roles in the Company’s internal controls;”

" Mamaging Director Chief Financial Officer
=
\_Mtor —
:.2.3..March, 2017
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